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PKF T. R. Upadhya & Co.
124 Lal Colony Marg, Lal Durbar
Kathmandu, Nepal

977 01 4510927, 4520026
trunco@ntc.net.np
www.pkf.trunco.com.np

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SHREE INVESTMENT AND FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Shree Investment and Finance Company Limited (referred
to as the “Company”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 32 Ashad 2082 (16
July 2025), and the statement of profit or loss, statement of other comprehensive income, statement of
cash flows, statement of changes in equity for the year 1 Shrawan 2081 to 32 Ashad 2082 (16 July
2024 to 16 July 2025) and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as at 32 Ashad 2082 (16 July 2025), its financial performance and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
ICAN’s Handbook of Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants, together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of financial statements in Nepal, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAN’s Handbook of Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the kéy audit matters to be communicated in
our report.

a) Information Technology (IT’) systems and controls impacting financial reporting in relation to the
Company

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

The Company's IT environment comprises @ |y gssessing the integrity of the IT systems relevant to
large  number of independent and :financial reporting, our team gained an understanding of the
interdependent IT systems used in its operations Company's IT infrastructure and systems supporting its
to process and record a high volume of financial reporting process for the evaluation and testing of

transactions across numerous locations. . general IT controls and application controls.

‘We gathered a comprehensive understanding of the IT
> applications landscape implemented at the Company, It
was followed by process understanding, mapping
- applications to the same, and understanding the financial
» |T general controls over user access ' risks posed by people, processes, and technology.

The accuracy and reliability of the financial
reporting process depend on the IT systems
and the related control environment, including:

PKFT.R. Upadhya & Co._is a member of PRFiGlobaI, the network of member firms of PKF International Limited, each of
yvhuct: is a separate and independent legal entity and does not accept any responsibility or liability for the actionsor -
inactions of any individual member or correspondent firm(s). ’
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We also assessed the operating effectiveness of controls
over granting, removal and periodical review of access
rights. We further tested the segregation of duties, including
preventive controls to ensure that access to change
applications, the operating system, or databases in the
production environment was granted only to authorized
personnel.

management and change management
across applications, networks, databases,
and operating systems;

= [T application controls,

Due to the pervasive nature, complexity and
importance of the impact of the IT systems and
related control environment on the Company's
financial reporting process, we have identified

Other areas that were assessed under the IT control
environment were whether requests for access to systems

testing of such IT systems and related control
environment as a Key Audit Matter for the
current year audit.

were appropriately logged, reviewed and authorized. Entity-
level controls related to policy and procedure were also part
of our audit.

Where deficiencies were identified, we tested compensating
controls or performed alternate procedures,

b) Identification and provisioning for non-performing assets (‘NPAs’) in relation to the Company

Totai i.oans and Advances (Ne

Loss Provision as at 32 Ashad 2082: NPR

r to Schedule 4.6, 4.7 and Note 3.3.5

Key Audit Matter

The Guidance Note on Interest Income
Recognition 2025, NFRS-9 Expected Credit
Loss Related Guidelines 2024, and Unified
Directives issued by NRB and provision of
NFRS, along with carve-outs issued by ICAN,
prescribe the prudential norms for Income
Recognition, Identification, Classification, and
Provisioning of Non-Performing Loans and
Advances.

The Company is also required to apply its
judgement to determine the necessary
identification and provision against NPAs by
applying quantitative as well as’ qualitative
factors

The risk of NPAs being identified is affected by
factors such as stress and liquidity concerns in
certain sectors.

The provisioning for identified NPAs is
estimated based on ageing and classification of
NPAs, recovery estimates, the value of security
and other qualitative factors and is subject to
the minimum provisioning norms specified by
NRB. Further, in line with NFRS-9 (along
with the carve-out issued by ICAN) and the
Expected Credit Loss (ECL) Related
Guidelines, 2024, issued by NRB,
impairment is recognized at the higher of
the provision as per NRB norms or the
impairment loss computed under NFRS-9
ECL, requirements.

As af 32 Ashad 2082, the total provision
requirement as per NRB horms amounted to
NPR 180,223,367 while the impairment
allowance determined under the NFRS-9 ECL
model stood at NPR 122,422,157. In
accordance with applicable requirements,
the Company has recognized the higher of
the two amounts, i.e., NPR 180,223,367 in the
financial statements.

oF

F

2t NPR G413

.38 million; Total Loan

siatements)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our key procedures included, but were not limited to, the
following:

i

We understood the process and controls, and tested the
design and operating effectiveness of key controls,
including IT-based controls, focusing on the following:

a) Approval of new lending facilities against the
Company’s credit policies and the performance of
annual loan assessments,

b) Controls over the monitoring of credit quality, which,
amongst other things, included the monitoring of
overdue reports, drawing power limits, and pending
security creation.

¢) Identification and classification of NPAs in line with
NRB'’s Directives, the impairment requirement as per
NFRS and NFRS-9 Expected Credit Loss Related
Guidelines, 2024 issued by NRB and certain
qualitative aspects.

d) Assessment of adequacy of NPA provisions being
the higher. of NRB norms and the impairment
requirement as per NFRS 9-Expected Credit Loss
Related Guidelines, 2024 issued by NRB,

ii. To test the identification of loans with default events and

other triggers, we selected a sample of performing loans
and independently assessed whether there was a need
to classify such loans as NPAs.

Performed inquiries with the credit and risk departments
to ascertain if there were indicators of stress or the
occurrence of an event of default in a particular loan
account or any product category that needed to be
considered as NPA,

. Held specific discussions with the management of the

Company on sectors where there is perceived credit risk
and the steps taken to mitigate the risks to identified
sectors.
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The identification of NPAs and provisioning for  v. As per our review of the impairment calculation, we noted
loans and advances requires a significant level that the impairment is calculated as the higher of the
of estimation, and given its significance to the following prescribed methods:

overall audit, including possible observation by ) . .

NRB, which could result in disclosure in the i) NRB Prudential Norms;
financial statements. ii)NFRS 9 - Expected Credit Loss (ECL) Related

The determination of ECL involves Guidelines, 2024.

significant judgment by management in i In respect of the NFRS-9 Expected Credit Loss (ECL)
assessing credit risk, staging loans, and calculations, we specifically:

using forward-looking macroeconomic ) .
information to estimate the probability of i) Reviewed the data inputs used for the ECL model
default (PD), loss given default (LGD), and (loan tapes, customer credit ratings, collateral
exposure at default (EAD). information, historical loss  data, and

macroeconomic overlays).

Given the complexity, regulatory carve-
outs, and the degree of estimation involved,
we identified this as a key audit matter.

ii) Verified the Company's ECL modeling policy and
assessed whether it was consistent with regulatory
guidance and industry practice.

i) Evaluated the appropriateness of staging criteria
(Stage 1, Stage 2, and Stage 3) and assessed
whether a significant increase in credit risk was
properly identified.

iv) Tested the reasonableness of key assumptions
including Probability of Default (PD), Loss Given
Default (LGD), and Exposure at Default (EAD).

v) Testing the accuracy and completeness of
underlying data used in the ECL calculation

vi) Comparing the results of the ECL model against
prudential provisioning requirements to ensure the
higher of the two was recorded.

Assessed the incorporation of forward-looking
information and management overlays into the ECL
estimate.

vii

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, including the report of the Board of Directors, but does not include
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The annual report, including the report of the
Board of Directors, is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of Management an& Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with NFRSs and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company'’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
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the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit, We aiso:

® Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

® Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the reiated disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

® Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal. control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
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therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on the Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We have obtained information and explanations asked for, which, to the best of our knowledge and
belief, were necessary for the purpose of our audit. In our opinion, the statement of financial position
as at 16 July 2025 (32 Ashad 2082), the statement of profit or loss, statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity, and statement of cash flows for the year then ended and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies have prepared
in the format prescribed by the Nepal Rastra Bank Unified Directives No. 4 and in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act, 2063 and Section 59 of the Banks and Financial Institutions Act,
2073 and are in agreement with the books of account maintained by the Company; and proper books
of account as required by law including relevant records relating to the preparation of the aforesaid
financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and
records of the Company. In our opinion, the returns received from the branches were sufficient for the
purpose of the audit though these statements were independently not audited.

In our opinion, the returns received from the branches were sufficient for the purpose of the audit
though these statements were independently not audited.

In our opinion, so far as appeared from our examination of the books, the Company has maintained
adequate capital funds and adequate provisions for possible impairment of assets in accordance with
the directives of Nepal Rastra Bank.

To the best of our information and according to explanations given to us and so far appeared from our
examination of the books of account of the Company, we have not come across cases where the
Board of Directors or any employees of the Company have acted contrary to the provisions of law
relating to the accounts, or committed any misappropriation or caused loss or damage to the Company
and violated any directives of Nepal Rastra Bank or acted in a manner to jeopardize the interest and
security of the Company, its depositors and investors.

Shashi Satyal
Partner

PKF T R Upadhya & Co.
Chartered Accountants

124 Lal Colony Marg, Lal Durbar, Kathmandu, Nepal
Date: 25 November 2025

UDIN No: 251125CA00008JWZHu
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Shree Investment and Finance Co. Ltd.

Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements
for the year ended 32 Ashadh 2082 (16 July 2025)

1. Reporting Entity

Shree Investment & Finance Company Limited (SIFCO or the Company), is a limited liability publicly listed company
registered with Office of Company Registrar in Nepal in the year 1994 (2051 BS). Registered office of the Company
is situated at Dillibazar, Kathmandu, Nepal. The Company carries out commercial Banking activities and other
financial services in Nepal under the license from Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB), The Central Company of Nepal as “Ga
Class” (Class C) licensed financial institution.

SIFCO offers a wide range of banking services in Nepal which includes deposits, loans and advances, remittance,
e-Banking, mobile Banking, etc.

2. Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on accrual basis of accounting in accordance with
Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) as published by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB), Nepal and
pronounced by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) and in the format issued by Nepal Rastra
Bank in Directive No. 4 of NRB Directives, 2081.

The financial statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss, Statement of
Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity, the Statement of Cash Flows and the Notes to
the Accounts.

2.1 Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared and approved by the Board of Directors in accordance
with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) and as published by the Accounting Standards Board
(ASB) Nepal and pronounced by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) and in the
format issued by Nepal Rastra Bank in Directive No. 4 of NRB Directives, 2081.

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented except otherwise stated.

2.2 Reporting Period and Approval of Financial Statements

The Company follows the Nepalese financial year based on the Nepalese calendar. The corresponding
dates for the English calendar are as follows:

Relevant Nepalese Calendar English Calendar
Financial Statement Date / Period Date / Period
Comparative SFP* Date 31 Ashadh 2081 15 July 2024
Comparative reporting period 1 Shrawan 2080 -31 Ashadh 2081 17 July 2023 - 15 July 2024
First NFRS SFP Date 31 Ashadh 2076 16 July 2019

Current NFRS reporting period 1 Shrawan 2081 -32 Ashadh 2082 16 July 2024 - 16 July 2025
*SFP =Statement of Financial Position

The Financial Statements for the year ended 32 Ashadh 2082 (16 July 2025) have been authorized for
issue by the Board of Directors in its meeting held on Mansir 9, 2082 (November 25, 2025) and have
recommended for approval of shareholders in the Annual General Meeting.

2.3 Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR) which is also the Company’s functional
currency. All financial information presented in NPR has been rounded to the nearest rupee except
indicated otherwise.
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Use of Estimates, Assumptions and Judgements

The Management of the Company has made judgments, estimations and assumptions which affect
the application of accounting policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses
that is required for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with Nepal Financial Reporting
Standards (NFRS). The Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of financial
statements are prudent and reasonable. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Necessary revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which such
estimates are revised and in any future periods affected. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Any revision in accounting estimate is recognized prospectively in present and future periods as
required under NAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Error. Significant
estimates, assumptions and judgments used in applying accounting policies which have material effect
in financial statements are:

- Fair value of Financial Instruments

« Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

« Impairment losses on financial and non-financial assets

«  Useful economic life of property, plant and equipment

« Defined Benefit Obligations

«  Provisions for liabilities, commitments and contingencies

Impairment on loans and advances (Higher of provision for loan loss calculated as per NRB Directive
and Impairment loss calculated as per NFRS (ECL Method) based on carve out issued by ICAN to be
mandatorily implemented till carve out period).

Changes in Accounting Policies

The Company is required to adopt and apply the accounting policies in conformity with NFRS. The
accounting policies are applied consistently; changes, if any, are disclosed with the financial impact to
the extent possible.

The Company, under NFRS, is required to apply accounting policies to most appropriately suit its
circumstances and operating environment. Further, the Company is required to make judgments in
respect of items where the choice of specific policy, accounting estimate or assumption to be followed
could materially affect the financial statements. This may later be determined that a different choice
could have been more appropriate. The accounting policies have been included in the relevant notes
for each item of the financial statements and the effect and nature of the changes, if any, have been
disclosed.

New Standards Issued but not yet Effective

For the reporting of financial instruments, NAS 32 Financial Instruments, Presentation, NAS 39 Financial
Instruments Recognition and Measurements and NFRS 7 Financial Instruments — Disclosures and NFRS
9 Financial instruments.

Financial Reporting Standard (NFRS 2024) has been pronounced by the ICAN on 26th Bhadra 2081
applicable mandatorily for annual periods beginning on or after 1st Shrawan, 2082.

New Standards and Interpretation not adopted

There have been, and are expected to be, a number of significant changes to the Company’s financial
reporting as a result of amended or new accounting standards, specifically IFRSs, that have been or will
be issued by the IASB. These standards will be applicable when adopted in Nepal. As of now, all the
standards and interpretations which have been issued for implementation have been adopted along
with the allowed carve-outs.

Discounting

When the realization of assets and settlement of obligation is for more than one year, the Company
considers the discounting of such assets and liabilities where the impact is material. Various internal
and external factors have been considered in determining the discount rate to be applied to the cash
flows of the Company.
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Reporting Pronouncements

The Company has, for the preparation of financial statements, adopted the NFRS pronounced by ASB
as effective on 11th Ashadh 2077. The NFRS conform, in all material respect, to International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

However, the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) vide its notice dated 2082.05.9 has
resolved that Carve-outs in NFRS with Alternative Treatment and effective period shall be provided to
the Banks and Financial Institutions regulated by NRB on the specific recommendation of ASB. Details
of carve outs provided are as follows.

2.9.1 NFRS 9: Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

a)

b)

Impairment and collectability of financial assets measured at amortised cost

As per Para 5.5, an entity shall assess at the end of each reporting period whether there
is any objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets measured
at amortized cost is impaired. If any such evidence exists, they shall apply paragraph
5 (given below) to determine the amount of any impairment loss unless the entity is a
bank or financial institution registered as per Bank and Financial Institution Act 2073.
Such entities shall measure impairment loss on loan and advances as the higher of
amount derived as per the norms prescribed by the Nepal Rastra Bank for loan loss
provision and amount determined as per paragraph 5 (given below) and shall apply
paragraph 5 (given below) to measure the impairment loss on financial assets other
than loan and advances.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets measured at
amortized cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed
atinitial recognition). The carrying amount of the assets shall be reduced either directly
or through use of an allowance account. The amount of the loss shall be recognized in
profit of loss.

The carve out is not optional and has been provided until FY 2082-83 (i.e., FY 2025-
26). The Company has measured the impairment of loan and advances to customers
as higher of the impairment as assessed under NFRS or as per the norms prescribed
by Nepal Rastra Bank. The provision is mandatory where impairment under NFRS and
impairment under NRB norms has been disclosed for comparison and the higher of the
two is charged as impairment and recognized in the financial statements.

Impracticability to determine transaction cost of all previous years which is the
part of effective interest rate

In Para 5.4, effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial assets or financial
liability to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset or to the amortized cost of a
financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, an entity shall estimate
the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial
instruments (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but shall
not consider the expected credit losses. The calculation includes all fees and points
paid or received unless it is immaterial or impracticable to determine reliably, between
parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate (Para B5.4.1
-B5.4.3), transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts. There is a presumption
that cash flows and the expected life of a group of similar financial instruments can
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be estimated reliably. However, in those rare cases when it is not possible to reliably
estimate the cash flows or the expected life of a financial instrument (or group of
financial instruments), the entity shall use the contractual cash flows over the full
contractual term of the financial instruments (or group pf financial instruments). This
crave out is optional and has been provided for period till FY 2082-83 (i.e., FY 2025-26).

Going Concern

The financial statements are prepared on the assumption that the Company is a going concern as the
directors are satisfied that the Company have the resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable
future. In making the assessment, the directors have considered a wide range of information related
to present and future conditions including the impact of economic situation in the operations and the
future projections of profitability, cash flows and capital resources.

Materiality

The Company for the preparation of financial statements determines materiality based on the nature or
magnitude, or both. Materiality is a pervasive constraint in financial reporting because it is pertinent to
all the qualitative characteristics.

Comparative Figures
The Company has regrouped/rearranged the previous year’s figures wherever necessary.

Limitation of NFRS Implementation

Wherever the information is not adequately available, and/or it is impracticable to develop the, such an
exception to NFRS implementation has been noted and disclosed in respective sections.

Significant Accounting Policies

3.1 Basis of Measurement
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified to include
the fair valuation to the extent required or permitted under NFRS as set out in the relevant accounting
policies. Financial information recorded and reported to comply with Directive of Nepal Rastra Bank
and relevant business practices followed by the Company are disclosed separately, where there have
been deviations with recognition and presentation criteria of NFRS.
3.2 Cash and Cash Equivalent
For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits and
cash equivalents comprising highly liquid investments that are convertible into cash with an insignificant
risk of changes in value with original maturities of three months or less.
3.3 Financial Instruments: Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
3.3.1 Recognition
The Company recognizes financial assets and liabilities when it becomes a party to the
terms of the contract, which is the trade date or the settlement date.
Financial assets and liabilities
The Company applies NFRS 7, NRFS 9 and NAS 39 for the recognition, and de-recognition
of financial assets and financial liabilities, the impairment of financial assets, and hedge
accounting. The Financial Instrument has been classified in line with the provision of
NFRS 9 as mentioned in chapter 4(Classification).
| uferet arffer wfaaaT Rocg/0cr
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Financial asset is any asset that is:

a. Cash.

b. an equity instrument of another entity.

c. acontractual right:

- to receive cash or another financial asset from another entity; or

- toexchangefinancial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions
that are potentially favourable to the entity; or

d. acontract that will or may be settled in the entity's own equity instruments and is:

- anon-derivative for which the entity is or may be obliged to receive a variable number
of the entity's own equity instruments; or

- aderivative that will or may be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed amount
of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the entity's own equity
instruments.

A financial liability is any liability that is:

a. contractual obligation:

- to deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or

- toexchangefinancial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions
that are potentially unfavourable to the entity; or

b. a contract that will or may be settled in the entity’s own equity instruments and is:

- anon-derivative for which the entity is or may be obliged to deliver a variable number
of the entity’s own equity instruments; or

— aderivative that will or may be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed amount
of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the entity’s own equity
instruments.

3.3.2 Classification and measurement
Financial assets are classified under below categories as required by NFRS 9, namely,

NFRS 9 classification - Financial Assets Subsequent measurement

1 Held at fair value through Profit or Loss At Fair Value - through Profit or Loss

) Held at fair value through Other Fair Value through Other Comprehensive
Comprehensive Income Income

Held at amortised cost using effective At Amortised cost using effective

3 interest rate interest rate

Financial Liabilities are classified under below categories as required by NFRS 9, namely,

NFRS 9 classification - Financial Liabilities Subsequent measurement
1 Held at fair value through Profit or Loss At fair value through Profit or Loss

Held at amortised cost using effective interest At Amortised cost using effective

2 rate interest rate

At initial recognition, the Company measures financial instruments (financial assets and
liabilities) at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or
loss are expensed in profit or loss.
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3.3.3 De-recognition

The Company derecognizes a financial asset, or a portion of a financial asset, from its
financial statements where the contractual rights to cash flows from the asset have
expired, or have been transferred, usually by sale, and with them either substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset or significant risks and rewards, along with the
unconditional ability to sell or pledge the asset.

Financial liabilities are derecognized when the liability has been settled, has expired or
has been extinguished.

3.3.4 Determination of fair value

The Company applies NFRS 9. All financial instruments are initially recognized at fair
value on the date of initial recognition and, depending on the classification of the
asset or liability, may continue to be held at fair value either through profit or loss or
other comprehensive income. The fair value of a financial instrument is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.

Wherever possible, fair value is determined by reference to a quoted market price for
that instrument. For many of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities, quoted prices
are not available, and valuation models are used to estimate fair value. The models
calculate the expected cash flows under the terms of each specific contract, and then
discount these values back to a present value based on interest rate yields and volatility
of currency rates.

The financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using an effective interest rate.

On initial recognition, it is presumed that the transaction price is the fair value unless
there is observable information available in an active market to the contrary. The best
evidence of an instrument’s fair value on initial recognition is typically the transaction
price.

Various factors influence the availability of observable inputs, and these may vary from
product to product and change over time. Factors include the depth of activity in the
relevant market, the type of product, whether the product is new and not widely traded
in the marketplace, the maturity of market modelling and the nature of the transaction
(bespoke or generic). To the extent that valuation is based on models or inputs that are
not observable in the market, the determination of fair value can be more subjective,
dependent on the significance of the unobservable input to the overall valuation.
Unobservable inputs are determined based on the best information available, for
example by reference to similar assets, similar maturities or other analytical techniques.

The sensitivity of valuations used in the financial statements to possible changes in
significant unobservable inputs is not applicable to the Company.

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The valuation of financial instruments often involves a significant degree of judgment
and complexity, in particular where valuation models make use of unobservable inputs
(‘Level 3" assets and liabilities). This note provides information on these instruments,
including the related unrealized gains and losses recognized in the period, a description
of significant valuation techniques and unobservable inputs, and a sensitivity analysis.
Fair Value Hierarchy

NFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement requires an entity to classify its assets and liabilities
according to a hierarchy that reflects the observe ability of significant market inputs.
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The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are defined below.
Level 1- Valuation Technique using quoted market prices.

Assets and liabilities are classified as Level 1 if their value is observable in an active
market. Such instruments are valued by reference to unadjusted quoted prices for
identical assets or liabilities in active markets where the quoted price is readily available,
and the price represents actual and regularly occurring market transactions. An active
market is one in which transactions occur with sufficient volume and frequency to
provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

Level 2- Valuation technique using observable inputs.

Assets and liabilities classified as Level 2 have been valued using models whose
inputs are observable in an active market. Valuations based on observable inputs use
market standard pricing techniques and are commonly traded in markets where all the
significant inputs are observable.

Level 3- Valuation technique using significant unobservable inputs.

Assets and liabilities are classified as Level 3 if their valuation incorporates significant
inputs that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). A valuation
inputis considered observableifit can be directly observed fromtransactionsinanactive
market, or if there is compelling external evidence demonstrating an executable exit
price. Unobservable input levels are generally determined via reference to observable
inputs, historical observations or using other analytical techniques. These are financial
instruments valued using valuation techniques where one or more significant inputs
are unobservable.

3.3.5 Impairment

(A) Impairment of financial assets held at amortized costs
Impairment of financial assets is considered when the carrying values of the assets
are more than the recoverable amount from the assets. Impairment is tested for all
financial assets except those measured at fair value.
Impairment of loans and advances to customers and Company and financial institutions
i) As per NFRS 9
An entity shall measure the loss allowance for a financial instrument based on Expected
Credit Loss (ECL) model. The steps to be followed under ECL are as follow:
a. Segmentation:
Adaptation of the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) requires the groupings of the financial

assets of the finance into segments and sub-segments based on the type of the product,
wherever applicable. The level of segmentation for the ECL computation are as follows:

Terminating Revolving Other Products
Term loans (Personal, Business, Working Capital) ~ Overdraft/cash credit Investments
Personal residential loans Contingent liabilities
Real estate loans Short-Term Demand Loan  Bills purchased
Hire purchase loans Margin lending loans Staff loans
Deprived sector loans Other

Other product
Additional products as decided by the company or Regulator in future
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b. Staging:
For the determination of the NFRS 9 expected credit loss, the facilities are allocated to

one of the three impairment stages by determining whether a significant increase in
credit risk has occurred since initial recognition or whether the facility has defaulted.

Assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk is carried out
at each reporting date. An asset can move into and out of the lifetime expected credit
losses categories (Stage 2 and 3) based on a predefined pattern obtained from the
historical default rates or delinquency status of account across various internal rating
grades, products, or sectors.

The assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk is made
for a specific instrument rather than for a counterparty since the quantum of change
in credit risk may be different for different instruments transacted with the same party.
Also, different instruments issued by the same counterparty may have had a different
credit risk at initial recognition. Some of the indicators (non-exhaustive list) of significant
increase in credit risk, are:

« More than one month past due.

« Absolute Lifetime PD is 5% or more.

« Relative Lifetime PD is increased by 100% or more.

« Risk rating (internal or external) downgraded by 2 notches since initial recognition.

- Risk rating downgraded to non-investment grade by external credit rating agency
(BB+ or below) or by the company’s internal credit rating system.

« Deterioration of relevant determinants of credit risk (e.g., future cash flows) for an
individual obligor (or pool of obligors).

- Expectation of forbearance or restructuring due to financial difficulties.

« Deterioration of prospects for sector or industries within which a borrower operates.

« Borrowers affected by macro-economic conditions based on reasonable and
supportable forecasts.

+ Modification of terms resulting in restructuring/ rescheduling.

« Credit Quality indicators determined as per internal credit assessment of performing
loans which are subject to individual monitoring and review, are weaker than that
in the initial recognition.

- Management decision to strengthen collateral and/or covenant requirements for
credit exposures because of changes in the credit risk of those exposures since
initial recognition.

Under the general approach of NFRS 9, the financial assets are classified into 3 stages,
as illustrated below. Each stage indicates the credit quality of the financial asset under
consideration:

Stage 1 : Includes financial instruments that have not had a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition or that have low credit risk at the reporting date. For these
assets, 12-month expected credit losses (ECL) are recognized. Stage 1 includes following:

a. Financial assets in which contractual payments are not overdue or is overdue for up
to T month.

b. Financial instruments that do not have significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition.
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c. Financial instruments that have low credit risk at the reporting date. For this purpose,
instruments with low credit risk includes:

« All exposures on Nepal Government/ Province/ Local Level or Nepal Rastra
Bank.

«  Exposures fully guaranteed by Nepal Government/ Province/ Local Level.

«  Foreign Sovereign exposures having rating BBB- and above from an external
rating agency at the reporting date.

« All exposures on BIS, IMF, EC, ECB and multilateral development banks with
risk weight of 0% as defined in Capital Adequacy Framework 2015

« Debenture/ bonds having rating of AA or above at reporting date from external
credit rating agency.
Stage 2 : Includes financial assets that have had a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition (unless they have low credit risk at the reporting date) but that do not
have objective evidence of impairment or financial assets that have significant increase
in credit risk at inception. For these assets, lifetime ECL are recognized.

The financial assets created or acquired by the company & including credit-risk higher
than the company's ratios for low-risk financial assets, shall be directly classified at (Stage
2) upon initial recognition. Therefore, the ECL thereof shall be measured based on the
Lifetime ECL.

Facilities with overdue period more than 1 month but not exceeding 3 months are
classified under Stage 2. Further Loans classified under ‘Watchlist’ as per NRB Directive
on prudential provisioning has been classified under stage 2.

Besides these, Stage 2 includes following:
a. Loans without approved credit line or with credit line revoked by the company.

b. Loans that have been restructured/ rescheduled but not classified as non-performing
loan as per existing provisions of NRB directives. However, rescheduling of
instalment/ EMI based loans resulting reduction in number of instalments due to
prepayments or change in number of instalments due to change in interest rates
under floating interest rate are not applicable.

¢. Claims on non-investment grade financial instruments i.e. with credit rating of BB+ or
below.

Stage 3 : Includes financial assets that have objective evidence of impairment at the
reporting date and includes:

a. Financial assets overdue for more than 3 months.

b. Credit facilities classified as non-performing as per NRB prudential provisioning
directive and are already impaired (defaulted) status.

¢. Credit impaired financial instruments with objective evidence of impairment. A
financial instrument is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that financial instrument
have occurred. Evidence that a financial instrument is credit-impaired include
observable data about the following events:

« significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;
« abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

« the lenders of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to
the borrower’s financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession
that the lenders would not otherwise consider;
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+  becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial
re-organization;

« disappearance of an active market for that financial instrument because of
financial difficulties.

« purchase or origination of a financial instrument at a deep discount that
reflects the incurred credit losses.

- Ifany, credit impaired as per the risk management practices of the company.

d. The company considers that the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to
the company in full, without realizing security (if held). The indicators of unlikeliness
to pay includes:

« The Company puts credit obligation on non-accrued status.

« The Company consents to distress restructuring of credit obligation resulting
in reduction in financial obligation due to material forgiveness, postponement
of principal or interest.

«  The Company has filed for debtor’s bankruptcy or a similar order in respect of
the borrower’s credit obligation.

- The Company sells a part of the credit obligation at a material credit-related
economic loss.

« The debtor has sought or has been placed in bankruptcy or similar protection
where this would avoid or delay repayment of the credit obligation.

« There is evidence that full repayment based on contractual terms is unlikely
without the Company’s realization of collateral regardless of whether the
exposure is current or past due by few days.

C. Computation methodology

The expected credit loss is calculated as the product probability of default (PD), Exposure
at Default (EAD) and Loss Given Default (LGD). Company has adopted following approach
to determine these variables:

a) Probability of Default (PD):

« The Probability of Default (PD) is calculated using historical default migration
rates, supplemented by external credit ratings and other qualitative factors. The
Through-the-Cycle PD (TTC PD) reflects the long-term average default risk by
smoothing short-term economic fluctuations. The Company applies five years of
historical default data to determine the TTC PD.

« Macroeconomics factors based on their weightage are used to determine PIT-
PD calibrated using Vasicek model and also using statistics tool (Z-score model)
in which three scenarios has been observed (Worst case, best case and Normal
case).

+  Minimum floor PD of 2.5% is used for all credit exposures as a regulatory backstop
measure. This is irrespective of results derived by the PD models.

b) Loss given default (LGD)

« LGD is the percentage of exposure that is not expected to be recovered in the
event of a default. The LGD is usually defined as the amount of credit that is lost by
afinancial institution when an obligor defaults. LGD models are developed based
on historical data, historical experience of cash recovery from defaults (including
settlements), cost and time of recoveries and all other relevant and supportable
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information (including forward looking information).

- For Stage 1 loans, LGD is based on expected recoveries and collateral values
over the next 12 months. For Stage 2 and 3 loans, LGD reflects lifetime expected
losses, considering changes in recoveries, collateral values, and macroeconomic
conditions.

- LGD for all collateral loans has been calculated by comparing the collateral
valuation with Exposure and flat 45% has been applied if data for recovery and
collateral has not been retrieved.

c¢) Exposure at default (EAD):

«  EAD has been determined on basis of sum of Outstanding principal and Accrued
Interest Receivables (AIR). However, for the loan like overdraft & credit card, EAD
has been determined on the basis of maximum of Approved limit or Outstanding
loan and AIR Income based on stages which the exposures fall into.

« The EAD estimation of off-balance sheet exposures is calculated after applying
the Credit Conversion Factor (CCF) to the nominal amount of the off-balance
sheet instrument.

+ Default CCF has been used.
i. Impairment model under Nepal Rastra Bank Directives

Impairment in respect of loans and advances are based on management’s assessment
of the degree of possible losses of the loans and advances, and subject to the minimum
impairment prescribed in NRB Directives. Impairment is charged for possible losses
on loans and advances at 1% to 100% based on classification of loans and advances,
overdraft and bills purchased in accordance with NRB directives, which is principally
based on the overdue and utilization criteria of the receivables.

ii. Policy adopted
The impairment loss on loans and advances as per NFRS 9 Expected Credit Loss model

is NPR 122.42 million and as per the norms prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank for loan loss
provision is NPR 180.23 million (NPR 130.82 million in previous year) in total.

Loans and advances have been impaired as the higher of the amount derived as per the
norms prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank for loan loss provision and total Expected Credit
Loss (ECL) amount determined as per NFRS 9.

iii. Comparative Impairment Analysis

Comparative impairment analysis as per NFRS 9 and as per Nepal Rastra Bank Directive
is given below:

NPR In‘000
Particulars As per NFRS 9 till This year Ascz?_:,:itst :I‘;v Ii;l;:;::;ed
Stage 1 57,108
Stage 2 4,137
Stage 3 61,177 -
Total 122,422 -
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NPR In‘000
As per NRB Directive As per NRB Directive
Category till this year till last year

Loan % Loan Provision Loan % Loan Provision
Good 93.05 6,077,930 60,779 93 5,280,508 63,366
Good(others)
Watch list 438 285,800 14,290 3.91 221,326 11,983
Performing 6,363,730 75,069 5,501,834 75,349
Restructured/
Rescheduled
Substandard 0.26 17,138 4,284 2.28 129,136 32,284
Doubtful 1.53 100,049 50,025 0.35 19,752 9,876
Bad 0.78 50,845 50,845 0.23 13,309 13,309
Non-Performing 168,032 105,154 162,197 55,469
Total 6,531,762 180,223 5,664,031 130,818

NPR In‘000
Particulars Accrued Interest Accrued Interest
Receivable This year Receivable Last year

Total AIR Excluding Staff loans and 41,486 32473
advances
Interes.t suspense of Stage 3 Loans (Bad (27,195) (5,630)
Loans in case of last year)
AIR recovered till 15th Shrawan 2082
(last year till Shrawan end 2081) (8250 (6:104)
AIR on Regulatory Reserve 6,040 20,739

iv.  Reversals of impairment

Theimpairmentloss onloans and advances is disclosed in Note 4.6 and 4.7 of the financial
statements. Settlement of loans after Ashad end 2082 from the sale of assets/internal
financial source of the borrower has been factored in loan loss provision.

vi Write-off of loans and advances

Loans (and the related impairment allowance accounts) are normally written off, either
partially or in full, when there is no realistic prospect of recovery. Where loans are
secured, this is generally after receipt of any proceeds from the realization of security. In
circumstances where the net realizable value of any collateral has been determined and
there is no reasonable expectation of further recovery, write-off may be earlier.

(B) Available for sale financial instruments

«  Available-for-sale debt securities: In assessing objective evidence of impairment at
the reporting date, the Company considers all available evidence, including observable
data or information about events specifically relating to the securities, which may result
in a shortfall in the recovery of future cash flows. Financial difficulties of the issuer, as well
as other factors such as information about the issuers’ liquidity, business and financial
risk exposures, levels of and trends in default for similar financial assets, national and
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local economic trends and conditions, and the fair value of collateral and guarantees
may be considered individually, or in combination, to determine if there is objective
evidence of impairment. In addition, the performance of underlying collateral and the
extent and depth of market price declines is relevant when assessing objective evidence
of impairment of available-for-sale securities. The primary indicators of potential
impairment are considered to be adverse fair value movements and the disappearance
of an active market for a security, while changes in credit ratings are of secondary
importance.

«  Available-for-sale equity securities: Objective evidence of impairment may include
specific information about the issuer as detailed above but may also include information
about significant changes in technology, markets, economics, or the law that provides
evidence that the cost of the equity securities may not be recovered. A significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the equity below its cost is also objective evidence
of impairment. In assessing whether it is significant, the decline in fair value is evaluated
against the original cost of the asset at initial recognition. In assessing whether it is
prolonged, the decline is evaluated against the continuous period in which the fair value
of the asset has been below its original cost at initial recognition.

Once an impairment loss has been recognised, the subsequent accounting treatment for
changes in the fair value of that asset depends on the type of asset:

- For an available-for-sale debt security, a subsequent decline in the fair value of the
instrument is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of further decreases in the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset.
Where there is no further objective evidence of impairment, the decline in the fair value
of the financial asset is recognised in other comprehensive income. If the fair value of
a debt security increases in a subsequent period, and the increase can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss,
or the instrument is no longer impaired, the impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss.

- For an available-for-sale equity security, all subsequent increases in the fair value of
the instrument are treated as a revaluation and are recognised in other comprehensive
income. Impairment losses recognised on the equity security are not reversed through
profit or loss. Subsequent decreases in the fair value of the available-for-sale equity
security are recognised in profit or loss to the extent that further cumulative impairment
losses have been incurred.

3.3.6 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the
balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously (‘the offset criteria’).

Property and Equipment
a. Recognition and Measurement

The cost of an item of property and equipment shall be recognized as an asset, initially recognized at
cost, if, and only if:

« it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
entity; and

«  the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
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Cost includes purchase price including any non-refundable taxes after deducting volume rebates and
trade discounts and such other costs that are incurred to bring asset to location and condition to be
operating in a manner intended by management.
The cost of self-constructed assets includes the following:

+  the cost of materials and direct labor.

- any other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition for
their intended use.

«  when the Company has an obligation to remove the asset or restore the site, an estimate
of the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they
are located; and

«  Capitalized borrowing costs for qualifying assets

The Company adopts a cost model for entire class of property and equipment. Neither class of the property
and equipment are measured at revaluation model nor is their fair value measured at the reporting date.
The items of property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalized as part of
that equipment.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized if it is probable that the future economic benefits from the
expenditure will flow to the Company. Ongoing repairs and maintenance to keep the assets in working
condition are expensed as incurred. Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property and equipment
(calculated as the difference between the net proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount of the
item) is recognized within other income in profit or loss.

Assets with a value of less than Rs. 5,000 are charged off to revenue irrespective of their useful life in the
year of purchase.

b. Depreciation

Class of assets Useful life
Computer 5 Years
Furniture and Fixture 10 Years
Office Equipment 10Years
Other Fixed Assets 10 Years
Vehicle 10 Years
Building 50 Years
Leasehold 15 years or lease period whichever is lower
Software Over the contract period (5 years if contract period not available)

c. De-recognition

The carrying amount of Property and Equipment shall be derecognized on disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the de-recognition
of an item of property and equipment shall be included in profit or loss when the item is derecognized
except for sales & lease back transaction. The gain shall not be classified as revenue.

The depreciation method, useful lives and residual value are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted, if any.
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Goodwill and Intangible Assets
Goodwill

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired in
Business Combination is recognized as goodwill. Following initial recognition, goodwill is measured
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Goodwillis reviewed forimpairment annually, or more frequently, if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets other than goodwill are accounted for in accordance with NAS 38 Intangible Assets
and NAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

Intangible assets include software and licenses. They are initially recognized when they are separable
or arise from contractual or other legal rights, the cost can be measured reliably and, in the case of
intangible assets not acquired in a business combination, where it is probable that future economic
benefits attributable to the assets will flow from their use.

Intangible assets are stated at cost (which is, in the case of assets acquired in a business combination,
the acquisition date fair value) less accumulated amortization and impairment, if any. These are
amortized over their useful lives in a manner that reflects the pattern to which they contribute to
future cash flows.

Intangible assets are reviewed for impairment when there are indications that impairment may have
occurred.

Determining the estimated useful lives of intangible assets requires an analysis of circumstances. The
assessment of whether an asset is exhibiting indicators of impairment as well as the calculation of
impairment, which requires the estimation of future cash flows and fair values less costs to sell, also
requires the preparation of cash flow forecasts and fair values for assets that may not be regularly
bought and sold.

Computer software

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software. Costs associated with the development of software are capitalized
where it is probable that it will generate future economic benefits in excess of its cost. Computer
software costs are amortized on the basis of expected useful life. Costs associated with maintaining
software are recognized as an expense as incurred.

At each reporting date, these assets are assessed for indicators of impairment. If an asset’s carrying
amountisdeterminedto be greater thanitsrecoverableamount, the assetis written down immediately.

Software is amortized on a straight-line basis in profit or loss over its estimated useful life, from the
date that it is available for use. The estimated useful life of software for the current and comparative
periods is five years

Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted if appropriate.

Investment Property/Non-Current Assets Held for Sale
Investment Property

Investment properties include land or land and buildings other than those classified as property
and equipment and non-current assets held for sale. Generally, it includes land, land and buildings
acquired by the Company as non-Banking assets but not sold as on the reporting date.

The Company holds investment property that has been acquired through enforcement of security
over the loans and advances.

Non-Current Assets Held for Sale

Non-current assets (such as property) and disposal groups (including both the assets and liabilities of

the disposal groups) are classified as held for sale and measured at the lower of their carrying amount
and fair value less cost to sell when: (i) their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through
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sale; (i) they are available-for-sale in their present condition; and (iii) their sale is highly probable.

Immediately before the initial classification as held for sale, the carrying amounts of the assets (or assets
and liabilities in a disposal group) are measured in accordance with the applicable accounting policies
described above.

Income Taxes

The Company applies NAS 12 Income Taxes in accounting for taxes on income. Income tax payable
on taxable profits (Current Tax) is recognized as an expense in the period in which the profits arise.
Withholding taxes are also treated as income taxes. Income tax recoverable on tax allowable losses is
recognized as a current tax asset only to the extent that it is regarded as recoverable by offset against
taxable profits arising in the current or prior period. Current tax is measured using tax rates and tax laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the statement of financial position date.

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the assets and liability method, on temporary differences arising
from the differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
financial statements. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates and legislation enacted or substantively
enacted by the statement of financial position date, which are expected to apply when the deferred tax
asset is realized, or the deferred tax liability is settled. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are only offset
when there is both a legal right to set-off and an intention to settle on a net basis.

Critical accounting estimates and judgments: The Company is subject to corporate income taxes under
the Income Tax Act 2058. There may be many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
treatment is uncertain and cannot be determined until resolution has been reached with the relevant tax
authority. Liabilities relating to these matters are based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due after taking into account external advice where appropriate.

Deferred tax assets have been recognized based on business profit forecasts. Further detail on the
recognition of deferred tax assets is provided in the deferred tax assets and liabilities section of this tax
note.

Provisions
The Company applies NAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets in accounting for
non-financial liabilities.

Provisions are recognized for present obligations arising as consequences of past events where it is more
likely than not that a transfer of economic benefit will be necessary to settle the obligation, which can be
reliably estimated. Provision is made for the anticipated costs when an obligation exists.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits during the period arising from the course of the ordinary
activities of an entity when those inflows result in increases in equity, other than increases relating to
contributions from equity participants. Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. The following
specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized.

3.9.1 Interest Income

Interest income includes interest income on accrual basis from loan and advance to
borrowers, loans, and investment in government securities, investment in NRB bond, and
interest on investment securities measured at fair value.

As per NFRS 9, for all financial instruments measured at amortized cost, interest income
or expense is recorded using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset or financial liability.

The calculation takes into account all contractual terms of the financial instrument
(for example, prepayment options) and includes any fees or incremental costs that are
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directly attributable to the instrument and are an integral part of the EIR, but not future
credit losses. The carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability is adjusted if
the company revises its estimates of payments or receipts. The adjusted carrying amount
is calculated based on the original EIR and the change in carrying amount is recorded
as 'Interest income’ for financial assets and ‘Interest and similar expense’ for financial
liabilities. However, for a reclassified financial asset for which the company subsequently
increases its estimates of future cash receipts as a result of increased recoverability of
those cash receipts, the effect of that increase is recognized as an adjustment to the EIR
from the date of the change in estimate.

However, for the purpose of interest income recognition for FY 2024/25 on loans and
advances, the company has applied coupon interest rate on principal outstanding for
all financial assets categorized under Stage 1 and Stage 2 in accordance with the Carve-
out to NFRS 9 pronounced on 25th August 2025 and Guidance Note on Interest Income
Recognition, 2025 issued by NRB.

Interest accrued on loans falling under Stage 3 has been recognized as income on cash
basis (incremental) approach as per NFRS 9-Expected Credit Loss Related Guidelines, 2024
and Guidance Note on Interest Income Recognition, 2025 issued by NRB. Unrecognized
interest income on such loans amounts to NPR 27.20 million as on 16th July 2025. Until
previous yeari.e., FY 2023/24,in accordance with the Guideline on Recognition of Interest
Income 2019 prevailing at that time, the company had not recognized cumulative
interest income of NPR 5.63 million of those loans which were classified under the “loss”
category (i.e. whose repayment is due for more than a year).

Accrued interest income of 16th July 2025 which has been realized till 31st July 2025
has been factored in computation of Regulatory Reserve in line with the regulator’s
guidelines.

3.9.2 Fee and Commission Income

Fees and Commission Income being the transaction costs integral to the effective interest
rate on financial assets. However, as per the Carve out issued by ICAN on 25th August
2025 regarding the treatment of fee and commission in EIR rate fees to be considered for
EIR computation unless it is impracticable to determine reliably. Since such transaction
costs are not identifiable for separate customers and therefore being impracticable, they
have not been considered when computing EIR. Other fees and commission income are
recognized on an accrual basis.

3.9.3 Dividend Income

Dividend incomes are recognized when the right to receive such dividend is established.
Usually this is the ex-dividend date for equity securities.

3.10 Interest Expense

Interest expense on all financial liabilities including deposits is recognized in profit or loss using an
effective interest rate method. The interest expense on all trading liabilities is considered to be incidental
to the Company’s trading operations and is presented together with all other changes in fair value of
trading assets and liabilities in net trading income.

3.11 Impairment of non-financial Assets:

Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If
any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount which is higher of Fair Value
less cost to sell or value in use. Where the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, assets are
considered impaired and are written down to recoverable amount.
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Employee Benefit
The Company applies NAS 19 Employee benefits for accounting most of the components of staff costs.
Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, allowances, socials security expenses, performance bonuses as provided in the law and other
employee-related expenses are recognized over the period in which the employees provide services to
which the payments relate.

Post-retirement benefits - Defined Contribution Scheme

The Company provides provident fund contribution as post-retirement benefits under defined
contribution scheme. A percentage of the basic salary is paid into the scheme on monthly basis. Company
recognizes contributions due in respect of the accounting period to profit and loss. Any contributions
unpaid at the reporting date are included as a liability.

The Company provides gratuity for the staff who have joined the Company on or after 4 September 2017
under defined contribution schemes at the rate of 8.33% of basic salary.

Post-retirement benefits - Defined Benefit Schemes

The Company continues to operate gratuity (for employees who joined before 4 September 2017),
accumulated annual leave payments and sick leave payments as post-retirement benefits as defined
benefit schemes. For employees who joined the Company before 4 September 2017, gratuity liability is
based on number of completed years of service. Such scheme Liabilities under each of those schemes
are valued at fair value using actuarial re-measurement. Company presents obligation less the fair value
of the assets after applying the asset ceiling test. Company intends to fund the liabilities with scheme
assets, though there are no scheme assets as at reporting date.

Changes in scheme liabilities or assets (re-measurements) that do not arise from regular service costs,
net interest on net defined benefit liabilities or assets, settlements, or contributions to the scheme, are
recognized in other comprehensive income, except for leave compensations that are taken directly to
the profit or loss.

Re-measurements comprise experience adjustments (differences between previous actuarial
assumptions and what has actually occurred), the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions, return on
scheme assets (excluding amounts included in the interest on the assets) and any changes in the effect
of the asset ceiling restriction (excluding amounts included in the interest on the restriction).

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is,
or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset, the Company uses the definition of a lease in NFRS 16.

At commencement or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the Company
allocates consideration in the contract to each lease component based on its relative stand-alone price.
However, for leases of branches and office premises the Company has elected not to separate non-lease
components and accounts for the lease and non-lease components as a single lease component.

The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The
right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs
incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove any improvements made to branches or
office premises.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the end of the lease term. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically
reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-measurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be
readily determined, Company’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its incremental
borrowing rate as the discount rate.
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Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:
«  fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments, less any lease incentives receivable.

«  variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at the commencement date.

« amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

the exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise,
lease payments in an optional renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an
extension option, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Company is reasonably
certain not to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. It is re-measured
when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is
a change in the Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or
termination option or if there is a revised in-substance fixed lease payment.

When the lease liability is re-measured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset has been reduced to zero.

The Company presents right-of-use assets under Property and Equipment (Note 4.13) and lease liabilities
under other liabilities (Note 4.23) separately in the Statement of Financial Position.

The interest expenses on lease liability have been presented under interest expenses (Note 4.30) and
depreciation charges on right of use assets Depreciation and Amortization (Note 4.38) in the statement
of profit or loss.

Amoun in NPR

Particulars Ashad End 2082 Ashad End 2081
Assets/Liabilities (shown in SOFP)
Right-of-use Assets (ROU Asset) 28,447,299 47,526,664
Lease Liabilities 34,926,225 53,773,559
Other Expense (shown in SPL)
Depreciation charge for ROU asset 8,449,421 8,398,585
Interest Expense on Lease Liabilities 4,138,266 5,034,467
Others
Total cash outflow for leases 10,950,585 10,489,938

3.14 Share Capital and Reserves

The Company classifies capital instruments as financial liabilities or equity instruments in accordance
with the substance of the contractual terms of the instruments. Equity is defined as residual interest in
the total assets of the Company after deducting all its liabilities. Common shares are classified as equity
of the Company and distributions thereon are presented in a statement of changes in equity.

Dividends on ordinary shares and preference shares classified as equity are recognized in equity in
the period in which they are declared. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of an equity
instrument are deducted from the initial measurement of the equity instruments considering the tax
benefits achieved thereon. The reserves include retained earnings and other statutory reserves such
as general reserve, foreign exchange equalization reserve, regulatory reserve, investment adjustment
reserve, CSR reserve etc.

3.15 Earnings per Share including diluted earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company and the basic weighted average number of shares. When calculating the diluted earnings per
share, the weighted average number of shares in issue is adjusted for the effects of all diluted potential
ordinary shares held in respect of the Company.
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Shree Investment and Finance Co. Ltd.

Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements
for the year ended 32 Ashadh 2082 (16 July 2025)

5. Disclosure of Additional Information

5.1. Risk Management Framework

The Company must deal with various risks associated with its business operations and it has a forward-
looking approach to managing risks. The Company has robust internal control system in place focused
on extensive risk management framework for effective assessment, measurement, and mitigation of
risk. The primary goal of the risk management framework is long-term sustainability of the Company
and having appropriate balance between risk and return, to enhance shareholder value.

The Company has strong credit appraisal and risk assessment practices in place for identification,
measurement, monitoring and control of credit risk exposures. The Company uses internal Credit
Risk Assessment Models and scorecards for assessing credit risk under different exposure segments.
Internal ratings of the Company are subject to a comprehensive rating validation framework. The Risk
Management Committee (RMC) oversees overall risk governance framework of The Company. The
Committee, on an on-going basis, monitors the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems. The Board is apprised regularly by the RMC regarding appropriateness and adequacy
of the existing risk identification and measurement system put in place in the Company and makes
recommendations for devising appropriate system & procedures.

5.2. CreditRisk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss that the Company may face because of a borrower or counterparty
not meeting its obligations in line with the original contract. Since the majority of the Company’s
assets are in the form of loans and advances, management of credit risk becomes the most crucial
task. A Company’s approach to Credit Risk Management is governed by Board’s approved policies and
procedures. Through this policy, the Company seeks to:

i)  Decide the policy and strategy for Integrated Risk Management covering the various risk exposures
of the Company.

ii) Set up policies and guidelines for identification, measurement, monitoring and control and
reporting of Credit Risks.

iii) Ensure that the Credit Risk Management Process is as per the guidelines given in the Company's
policy.
iv) Review and approve Credit Risk limits.
v) Ensure robustness of financial models, and effectiveness of systems used to calculate Credit Risk.
There is a well-defined credit risk management structure of the Company, which comprises of
Risk Management Committee (RMC)

«  Credit Committee - The Credit Committee, monitors Credit Risk, ensuring compliance and
implementations of Credit Risk policy/strategy approved by the Board and incorporation of
Regulatory Compliance in Company’s Policies and Guidelines.

i) Maximum exposure to credit risk

The Company has financial assets consisting mainly of loans & advances and investments at amortized
cost. In these cases, the maximum exposure to credit risk is the carrying amount of the related financial
assets.

et aTfien wfdeeT joc2/0er | 9%
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ii)  Credit quality of neither past due nor impaired and past due or impaired

The table below shows the credit quality by class of asset for all financial assets exposed to credit risk,
based on the Company’s internal credit rating system as of 32 Ashadh 2082.

(Amount in NPR Millions)

g 2 o g
s 8, = 25 2+
w -
w = = 2 = T S 9 —
X (] g [ ) - ; v © > i [}
Particulars o2 338 98 s® 3T ® =
Q o= - (= :'5 T : 2 g’ =
£ §5° 3 g§ %TE
g2 & 5 ££ £
o
Financial Assets
Assets carried at Amortized Cost
Cash and cash equivalent 632 632
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 425 425

Placement with Company and
Financial Institutions

Loans and advances 5,960 286 17 100 50 6,413
Investment securities

Fair Value through Profit and Loss

(FVTPL)

Derivative financial instruments

Trading Assets

Fair Value through Other

Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)

Investment securities 2,199 2,199
Investment in subsidiaries

Total 9,216 286 17 100 50 9,669

5.3. Market Risk

Market risk refers to the risk to a Company resulting from movements in market prices, in particular,
changes in interest rates, foreign exchange rates, and equity and commodity prices. Market risk is
defined as the risk of losses in on and off-balance sheet positions arising from movements in market
prices. The risks subject to this requirement are:

a. Interest Rate Risk: Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

b. Currency Risk: Foreign exchange risk is the potential for the Company to experience volatility in the
value of its assets, liabilities and solvency and to suffer actual financial losses because of changes in
value between the currencies of its assets and liabilities and its reporting currency.

c. Equity Price Risk: Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in equity prices (other than those arising from interest
rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual
financial instrument or its issuer, or by factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the
market.

One of the key challenges in market risk is quantification of risks. Appropriate models/measures need to

be used based on the materiality of identified risks. Accurate assessment will help to reduce loss. There

5o | ufdEr arfier gfaaaT Roce/o0eR
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are many sensitivities measures available to quantify market risk. However, no single measure can reflect
all aspects of market risk. The Company utilizes various statistical and non-statistical risk measures to
enhance the stability of risk measurement. Overall, these risk measures provide a comprehensive view
of market risk exposure more than any single measure by itself.

The Market Risk Management Committee (MRMC) has the overall responsibility to identify, monitor /
manage various market risk exposures of the Company through Market risk limits, stop loss limits, etc.,
atamore granular level. MRMC is headed by the Managing Director, CFO is functional head and CRCO is
member secretary. The MRMC reviews structured liquidity, interest rate risk, open position of currencies
and risk associated investment risk etc. MRMC meets at quarterly intervals. The Member secretary and
functional head will ensure regulatory compliances.

The Assets Liability committee (ALCO) is a senior management level committee responsible for
supervision/management of Market Risk (mainly interest rate and liquidity risks). ALCO is the apex body
for assets liabilities management, within the risk parameters laid down by the Company's Board and it
shall remain inter alia in charge of

«  Asset Liability Management
«  Structural Balance Sheet Risk and Policy

A Company is required to manage market risk and ensures that the capital requirements for market risk
are being maintained on a continuous basis. Capital assessment is essential to limit risk and reduce the
effect of potential and unexpected losses.

Operational Risk

Operational Risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people
and system or from external events. The Operational Risk Management Committee (ORMC)
reviews the operational risk profile of the Company at periodic intervals and recommends suitable
controls/mitigation for managing operational risk in the Company. The Committee anticipates changes
and threats, concurs on areas of highest priority and related mitigation strategies and ensures that
adequate resources are being assigned to mitigate risks as needed. The Operational Risk Management
Committee (ORMC) is an executive Committee which is headed by the DY. CEO and CRCO is member
secretary. Its principal objective is the mitigation of operational risks within the Company by creation
and maintenance of an operational risk management process.

All the staff are well trained about risks and are guided on the areas of their operation. The Company
continues to strengthen its risk management system through various measures to address the risks
posed by a multitude of factors, which ultimately helps the Company to reaffirm its position as one
of the best-managed company in Nepal. For assessment of Pillar-I risks and Pillar-Il risks such as
liquidity risk and interest rate risk, as well as adequacy of capital and overall risk management practices
under normal and stressed conditions, the Company has comprehensive Internal Capital Adequacy
Assessment Process (ICAAP) in place.

The Operational Risk Management Framework has been established with an explicit mandate to
support the implementation of an effective Operational Risk Management process and to meet Basel,
NRB requirements. This will entail:

a. Increasing Operational Risk & Loss transparency by incident reporting.

b. Enhancing Operational Risk awareness through Risk and Control Self-assessment (RCSA) process.
¢. Improving early warning information through implementation of Key Risk Indicators (KRls).
d

Facilitate speedy resolution of risk issues by effectively tracking and follow-up of assessment
outcomes; and

e. Finally, allocation of risk ownership and responsibilities.
Key Roles of ORMC:

« Review the risk profiles, understand future changes and threats, and concur on areas of highest
priority and related mitigation strategy.

« Assure that adequate resources are being assigned to mitigate risks as needed.

et aTfieh gfdeeT Rocg/oer | &Y
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- Communicate with business units and staff about the importance of operational risk and assure
adequate participation and cooperation.

« Review and approve the development and implementation of operational risk methodologies and
tools including assessments, reporting, capital and loss event databases.

+ Receive and review reports/presentations from various business groups, support departments (IT,
HR etc.) and business units, processing cells about their risk profiles and mitigation programs.

« Todiscuss and recommend suitable controls/mitigations for managing operation risks

« Analyze frauds, potential losses, non-compliance, breaches etc. and recommend corrective
measures to prevent recurrences.

+ Discuss any issues arising / directions in any one business unit/product which may impact the risks
of other business/products.

«  Continually promote risk awareness across all business units so that complacency does not set in.
«  Monitor and ensure that appropriate ORM frameworks are in place.

« Review the reports presented by Central Operations Department (COD) with respect to operational
risk profile of the Company. Approve policy-related mitigation plans.

+ Review roll-out plans for implementation of ORM initiatives. Proactively review and manage
potential risks which may arise from regulatory changes/or changes in economic /political
environment in order to keep ahead.

5.5. Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations
associated with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Liquidity
risk arises because of the possibility that the Company might be unable to meet its payment obligations
when they fall due as a result of mismatches in the timing of the cash flows under both normal and stress
circumstances. Such scenarios could occur when funding needed for illiquid asset positions is not available
to the Company on acceptable terms. To limit this risk, management has arranged for diversified funding
sources in addition to its core deposit base and adopted a policy of managing assets with liquidity in
mind and monitoring future cash flows and liquidity on a daily basis. The Company has developed internal
control processes and contingency funding plans for managing liquidity risk. The Company always
maintains liquid assets higher than regulatory prescription to mitigate the liquidity risk.

Assets Liability committee (ALCO) is a senior management level committee responsible for
supervision/management of liquidity risks.

Maturity profile of financial assets and liabilities at closing date of financial year, which is used by the
management to monitor and take necessary action for liquidity in the Company, is as under:

As on 32 Ashadh 2082
Amount in NPR Millions

SN. Particulars I},e;j;::; 3.6 Month ° ,1\/'\23 r;:h- Mc;r;:et:ran Total
Assets
1 Cash and cash equivalent 632 632
2 Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 425 425
3 P'Iacerr?ent \{vith Company and
Financial Institutions
4 Derivative financial instruments
5  Other trading assets
6  Loans and advances to customers 601 523 3,919 1,370 6,413
7 Investment securities 294 1,905 2,199
8  Current tax assets

g | et arfifes ufdaeT Roct/0eR
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S.N. Particulars Iée,a(;c:;? 3-6 Month 6 ,:A\?e r;th_ Mc;rs;:ran Total

9 Investment in subsidiaries

10 Investment in associates

11 Investment property

12 Property and equipment

13 Goodwill and Intangible assets

14 Deferred tax assets

15  Other assets 34 34
Total (A) 1,986 523 3,919 3,275 9,703
Liabilities

1 ll?]liﬁtjgogsmpany and Financial 367 367

2 Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 170 170

3 Derivative financial instruments

4 Deposits from customers 1,195 490 3,657 2,493 7,835

5  Borrowing

6  Current tax liabilities

7  Provisions

8  Deferred tax liabilities

9  Other liabilities 79 79

10  Debt securities issued

11 Subordinated liabilities
Total (B) 1,811 490 3,657 2,493 8,451
Net Assets (A-B) 175 33 262 782 1,252
Cumulative Net Assets 175 208 470 1,252

5.6. Capital Management

5.6.1.Qualitative disclosures

The objective of capital management is to ensure that the Company has adequate Capital to support
material risks in the business and also to encourage the Company to develop and use better Risk
Management Techniques for monitoring and managing risks.

The Company has devised ICAAP, which is intended to ensure that it has adequate capital to support all
the risks in business, to improve upon the risk over time and achieve better risk management techniques
in monitoring and managing risks. ICAAP Committee meets at quarterly intervals to review the internal
capital assessment commensurate with the risk profile and review the portfolios which require capital
charge. ICAAP Committee also reviews strengthening of risk management, applying internal limits,
strengthening the level of provisions and reserves, and improving internal controls.

Tt aTfieh UfdeeT joc/0cr | &3
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5.6.2.Quantitative disclosures

a) Capital structure and capital adequacy

i. Tier 1 capital and a breakdown of its components

1.2

CAPITAL

Core Capital (TierI) (CET1 + AT1)
Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1)

a

—_ X = SKQ -+~ m® Q Nn T

o 5 3

©

N < X = <

Paid up Equity Share Capital

Equity Share Premium

Proposed Bonus Equity Shares

Statutory General Reserves

Retained Earnings

Un-audited Current Year Cumulative Profit
Capital Redemption Reserve

Capital Adjustment Reserve

Debenture Redemption Reserve

Dividend Equalization Reserves

Bargain Purchase Gain

Other Free Reserve

Less: Goodwill

Less: Intangible Assets (software in our case)
Less: Fictitious Assets

Less: Investment in Equity in Licensed Financial
Institutions

Less: Investment in Equity of Institutions with Financial
Interests

Less: Investment in Equity of Institutions in Excess of
Limits

Less: Investments Arising Out of Underwriting
Commitments

Less: Reciprocal Crossholdings

Less: Purchase of Land & Building in Excess of Limit and
Unutilized

Less: Cash Flow Hedge

Less: Defined Benefit Pension Assets

Less: Un-recognized Defined Benefits Pension Liabilities
Less: Negative Balance of Reserve Accounts

Less: Other Deductions

Adjustments Under Pillar 11

Less: Shortfall in Provision (6.4 a 1)

Less: Loans and Facilities extended to Related Parties
and Restricted lending (6.4 a 2)

Additional Tier 1 (AT1)

a
b
c

Perpetual Non-Cumulative Preference Share Capital
Perpetual Debt Instruments
Stock Premium

gY | cfaadt arfies ufdaeT R0ct/0eR

32 Ashadh
2082

1,281,611

1,000,000

286,274
65,639

70,302

Amount In ‘000
31 Ashadh

2081
1,207,092

981,683

271,998
23,712

70,302
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ii. Tier 2 capital and a breakdown of its components

Particular
S. No.

Supplementary Capital (Tier Il)

Subordinated Term Debt
Hybrid Capital Instruments
Stock Premium

General loan loss provision

- 0O QO O T O

Investment Adjustment Reserve

in Regulatory Reserve

I o

Assets Revaluation Reserve
I Exchange Equalization Reserve

j Other Reserves

iii. Deductions from capital

Accrued Interest Receivable on pass loan included

32 Ashadh

2082

65,692

Cumulative and/or Redeemable Preference Share

60,779

7 Shree Investment and Finance Co. ltd.
(AT g ddare

T R geleu W ERe)

Amount In‘000

31 Ashadh
2081

75,281

74,432
849

4,913

The following particulars have been considered for deduction from core capital:

Particulars 32 Ashadh 2082 31 Ashadh 2081
Intangible Assets (software in our case) - -
Investment in equity of institutions with financial ) i
interests (subsidiary NSMBL)
Less: Purc.hase of Land & Building in Excess of Limit 70,302 70,302
and Unutilized
Total 70,302 70,302

iv. Total qualifying capital
Amount In‘000

Particulars 32 Ashadh 2082 31 Ashadh 2081
Tier | Capital 1,281,611 1,207,092
Tier Il Capital 65,692 75,281
Total 1,347,303 1,282,373

Capital Adequacy Ratio
CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIOS 32 Ashadh 2082 | 31 Ashadh 2081

Common Equity Tier 1 Capital to Total Risk Weighted o 0
Exposures (After Company's adjustments of Pillar II) 17.26% 18.38%
Tier | Caplltal tg Total Risk ngghted Exposures (After 17.26% 18.38%
Company's adjustments of Pillar Il)
Tier 1 and Tier Il Capital to Total Risk Weighted o 0
Exposures (After Company's adjustments of Pillar II) 18.15% 19.53%

et aTfier wfdeeT j0c2/0er | G4
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v Summary of the terms, conditions and main features of all capital instruments,
especially in case of subordinated term debts including hybrid capital instruments

Ordinary share capital: The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par
value of Rs. 100 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.
In the event of liquidation of the Company, holder of equity shares will be entitled to
receive remaining assets of the Company after distribution of preferential amount. The
distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

b) Risk Exposures
Risk weighted exposures for Credit Risk, Market Risk and Operational Risk

S.No.

1
2
3
4

RISK WEIGHTED EXPOSURES
Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk

Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk
Risk Weighted Exposure for Market Risk
Regulatory Adjustment

Total Risk Weighted Exposures

(Amount‘000)
32 Ashadh 2082
6,752,539
382,242

290,255
7,425,037

Risk weighted exposure under each of 18 Categories of Credit Risk

S.No.

w N

N O b

oo

10
11
13

14

15
16
17
18

RISK WEIGHTED EXPOSURES

Claims on domestic banks that meet capital adequacy
requirements

Claims on Domestic Corporates (Unrated)
Regulatory Retail Portfolio (Not Overdue)

Claims fulfilling all criterion of regularity retail except
granularity

Claims secured by residential properties

Claims secured by residential properties (Overdue)

Claims secured by Commercial real estate

Past due claims (except for claims secured by residential
properties)

High Risk claims

Real Estate loans for land acquisition and development (Other
than mentioned in Capital Adequacy framework 2007-point
3.3()(M()

Lending Against Shares

Personal Hire purchase/Personal Auto Loans

Investments in equity and other capital instruments of
institutions listed in stock exchange

Investments in equity and other capital instruments of
institutions not listed in the stock exchange

Staff loan secured by residential property
Other Assets

Off Balance Sheet Exposures

Total

g% | et arfifes ufdaeT Roct/0eR

Amount In ‘000

32 Ashadh 2082
52,110

1,609,390
864,416

291,649

430,297
55,753
734,543

259,530

565,508
685,756
439,247

16,549

204,411

1,128

25,021
287,695
229,533

6,752,539
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c) Total risk weighted exposure calculation table

1.1 RISK WEIGHTED EXPOSURES

a Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk

b Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk

C Risk Weighted Exposure for Market Risk
Total Risk Weighted Exposures (a+b-+c)
Adjustments Under Pillar Il

Add: RWE equivalent to reciprocal of capital
charge of 3% of gross income.

Add: 3% of the total RWE as Supervisor is not
satisfled with the overall Risk Management
Policies and Procedures (6.4 a 9)

Total Risk Weighted Exposures (After
Company's Adjustment of Pillar I1)

7 Shree Investment and Finance Co. ltd.
(AT W7 dpare T A FwIeIE W wHeer)

Amount In ‘000
32 Ashadh 2082 31 Ashadh 2081

6,752,539 5,902,671
382,242 397,414
76,211 77,105
214,043 189,003
7,425,037 6,566,193

d) Amount of NPA (Gross and Net) as on 32 Ashadh 2082

S.No. Particulars
1 Restructured
2 Substandard
3 Doubtful
4 Loss
Total

Amount In‘000

Gross NPA Net NPA
17,138 129,136
100,049 19,752
50,845 13,309
168,032 162,197

5.7. Classification of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

=y
wv
38
n ==
. . (/] j.
Financial Assets s g0
= ® &
=9
= a
(1]
L
Cash and cash equivalent 41 632,095,320
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 42 424,587,408
Placement with Company and Financial 43
Institutions '
Derivative financial instruments 44
Other trading assets 45
Loan and advances to B/Fls 46
Loans and advances to customers 47

As on 32 Ashadh 2082
Amount in NPR

()]
e 2
o 4 =
33 8
- = ) (9]
- 2 s
v &0 N =
S EV s =
GRS =
>V o
=5 £
8 £ =
o
632,095,320
424,587,408

257,944,500 257,944,500
6,155,431,149  6,155,431,149
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Investment securities 48 2,198,827,498 2,198,827,498
Current tax assets 49 30,575,192 30,575,192
Investment in subsidiaries 4.1

Investment in associates 411

Investment property 412 14,602,600 14,602,600
Property and equipment 413 132,621,913 132,621,913
Goodwill and Intangible assets 414 1,914,697 1,914,697
Deferred tax assets 415

Other assets 4.16 33,624,546 33,624,546
Total 1,270,021,676 2,198,827,498 6,413,375,649 9,882,224,823

As on 32 Ashadh 2082

Amount in NPR

Due to Company and Financial Institutions 4.7 367,361,995 367,361,995
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 418 170,000,000 170,000,000
Derivative financial instruments 4.19

Deposits from customers 420  7,834,781,029 7,834,781,029
Borrowing 4.21

Current tax liabilities 4.9

Provisions 4.22

Deferred tax liabilities 415 15,915,561 15,915,561
Other liabilities 4.23 78,723,960 78,723,960
Debt securities issued 4.24

Subordinated liabilities 4.25

Total 8,466,782,545 8,466,782,545
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5.7.2. Disclosure on measurement of operating segment profit or loss, assets
and liabilities

a. Revenue from external customers includes gross interest revenue, gross fee and
commission revenue, net trading revenue and other operating incomes (does
not include intersegment revenue).

b. Net Revenue includes net interest income, net fee and commission income, net
trading revenue and net other operating incomes.

¢. Interest revenue includes gross interest revenue of the Company.
d. Interest expense includes gross interest expense of the Company.
e. NetInterest revenue is Interest revenue less interest expense (f=d-e).

f.  Depreciation and amortisation for the segments' identifiable assets have been
allocated to the respective segments.

g. Company does not have investment in associates and / or joint venture.
h. There are no material non-cash item.

i. Impairment of assets has been specifically identified for each segment assets
and disclosed accordingly.

j.  Segment Assets have been disclosed as identified for each segment.

k. Itis Company's policy to keep segment's asset to be equal to segment liabilities
under transfer pricing mechanism.

5.7.3. Information about geographical areas as on 32 Ashadh 2082

Province wise revenue from following geographical areas.

Particulars Percentage (%) Amount in NPR Lakhs

a. Domestic

Koshi Province 6.22% 544
Bagmati Province 71.97% 6,297
Gandaki Province 4.21% 368
Lumbini Province 16.31% 1,427
Karnali Province 1.30% 114
Sub-total(a) 100% 8,750
b. Foreign - -
Sub-total(b) - -
Total(a+b) 100% 8,750

5.7.4. Information about major customers

Revenue from a single external customer does not amount to 10 percent or more of
the entity’s revenue.

| uferet arffer wfaaaT Rocg/0cr
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Share Options and Share Based Payments

There are no share options and employees, and directors are not given any share-based
payments whether equity settled, or cash settled.

Contingent liabilities and commitments

Contingent liabilities include guarantees, irrevocable credit commitment and letter of
credit and contingent liabilities related to the legal proceedings or regulatory matters
are not recognized in the financial statements but are disclosed when the probability of
settlement is remote.

Details of contingent liabilities and commitments are given in note 4.28 and summary
presented hereunder:

Amount in NPR
Particular 32 Ashadh 2082 31 Ashadh 2081

Contingent liabilities

Undrawn and undisbursed facilities 165,019,031 143,211,163
Capital commitment

Lease Commitment 42,186,022 71,582,667
Litigation

Total 207,205,053 214,793,831

Related Parties Disclosures

Parties are related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial or operation decisions, or
one other party controls both. The definition includes subsidiaries, associates, directors
and key management personnel.

Name Designation
Dinesh Raj Joshi Chairman
Bhola Prasad Pathak Director
Umesh Bhagat Pradhananga Director
Ram Krishna Sharma Wagle Director
Samson J.B. Rana Director
Kalyan Adhikari (Appointed: Nov 24, 2025) Director
Mamata Adhikari (Retired: Oct 09, 2025) Director
Lilamani Neupane Chief Executive Officer

Amount paid to Chief Executive Officer

The Board of Directors have reappointed Mr. Lilamani Neupane as Chief Executive Officer
of the Company with effect from 2078/08/23 for the period of 4 years. CEO has been paid
a total of NPR. 8,571,860 and has been provided vehicle facility for official purpose.

The Salary and benefits paid to the CEO are as follow:

Basic Salary Provident Allowance Bonus Oth.e.r Total Income
Fund Perquisites

5,697,728 569,772 1,126,189 1,178,170 - 8,571,860

TferEt aTfieh gfdeeT Rocg/oer | 9
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Loans and Advances extended to Promoters:
The Company has not extended any loans to promoters during the year.

Directors and other Key Management Personnel (KMP)

The Company’s Directors, Key Management Personnel and persons connected with them,
are also considered to be related parties for disclosure purposes. Personnel representing
the Central Management Committee (CENMAC) are considered as KMP.

Directors related expenses

The details of expenses incurred by the Company for the member of the Board of Director
is as under:

Amount in NPR

Particulars Expenses
Transaction during the year 32 Ashadh 2082 | 31 Ashadh 2081
Board Meeting Fee 653,000 661,000
Audit Committee Meeting Fee 80,000 96,000
Risk Management Committee Meeting Fee 88,000 64,000
AML/CFT Committee Fee 56000 80,000
Employee Service Facility Committee Meeting Fee 8,000 16,000
Sub-committee (Board Level) 48,000 -
Total 933,000 917,000

Merger and Acquisition
The Company has not undertaken any mergers and acquisitions during the year.

5.12. Events After Reporting Date

The Company monitors and assesses events that may have potential impact to quality as
adjusted / non-adjusted events after the end of reporting period. There are no material
events that have occurred subsequent to 32st Ashadh, 2082 till signing of Financial
Statement on Mansir 9, 2082 (November 25, 2025).

5.13. Employee Bonus

The Company has provided employee bonus at the rate 10% of profit before tax as per
prevailing Bonus Act, 2030.

5.14. Reserves

Corporate Social Responsibility:
As per the NRB directive no. 6(17) on the Corporate Social Responsibility, the Company
has allocated 1% of the net profit of current fiscal year for CSR activities. The amount
allocated for corporate social responsibility reserve is Rs.696,531 and Rs. 616,593 for
current year and previous year respectively. Comparative table of CSR expenses and fund
is as under:

Amount in NPR

Particulars Note 32 Ashadh 2082 31 Ashadh 2081
Net Profit during the year as per P/L PIL 69,653,168 61,659,323
account
Minimum 1% to be appropriated for CSR
as per NRB to be expended next year of 696,531 616,593
Net Profit (A)
| uferet arffer wfaaaT Rocg/0cr
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Particulars Note 32 Ashadh 2082 31 Ashadh 2081
Additional fund appropriated to cover
already committed projects in CSR
TOt?l fund appropriated in CSR fund 696,531 616,593
during the year
Opening balance in CSR fund 4,27 1,912,442 2,033,699
teSsRs: Expenses incurred during the year in 437 (554,837) (737,850)
Add/Less: Fund Transferred during the 141,694 121.257
year
Total balance outstanding in CSR fund 4.27 2,054,136 1,012,442

as on Ashadh End

Summary of amount expensed under the corporate social responsibility is presented

in table below.

Province wise expenses details

Province Amount (NPR)
Koshi Province 90,181
Sudurpaschhim Province 62,692
Bagmati Province 344,159
Gandaki Province 15,200
Lumbini Province 37,205
Karnali Province 5,400
Province wise total 554,837
Sector wise expenses details
Particulars Amount (NPR)
ADSoN for sponsorship for Ability development program 25,000
Awareness Program on FM 81,360
Rotary Club of Pashupati 20,000
Minar High School 50,000
Samudayik Jestha Nagarik Samaj 100,000
Belauri Samaaj — Sudurpaschhim Province 62,692
J P Foundation 11,664
Nepal Gramin Bikash Kendra (Koshi Province) 26,894
Other Expenses related to Financial Literacy/Corporate Social Responsibilities 177,227
Total 554,837

et aTfieR UfdeeT Roc2/0cr | 3
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5.14.1. Staff Skill Development Fund

The company is required to incur expenses towards employee training and
development for an amount that is equivalent to at least 3% of the preceding year’s
salary and allowance. Any shortfall amount in meeting this mandatory expense
requirement in the current year will have to be transferred to this reserve fund
through appropriation of net profit and the amount shall accumulate in the fund
available for related expenses in the subsequent year. Balance in this fund is directly
reclassified to retained earnings in the subsequent year to the extent of expenses
made for employees training related activities.

Particulars Note 32 Ashadh 31 Ashadh
2082 2081

Opening Staff Skill Development Fund 1,396,000 1,789,997
Additions during the year (Minimum
3% to be expended in staff training and 1,627,678 1,712,682
development as prescribed by NRB)
Total 3,023,678 3,502,679
Less: Expenses |ncurreq in staff training 735.276 2,106,679
and development during the year
Remaining Balance (Unspent) as on 4.27 2,288,402 1,396,000

Ashad End
5.14.2. Regulatory Reserve

This is a non-free statutory reserve and is a requirement as prescribed in NRB
directive. In the transition to NFRS from previous GAAP the Company is required to
reclassify all amounts that are resultant of re-measurement adjustments and that are
recognized in retained earnings into this reserve heading. The amount reclassified to
this reserve includes:

+ Re-measurement adjustments such as interestincome recognized against interest
receivables,

- Difference in loan loss provision as per NRB directive and impairment on loan and
advance as per NFRS,

«  Amount equals to deferred tax assets,

« Actual Loss recognized in other comprehensive income,
+ Amount of goodwill recognized under NFRS.

« Amount of Non-Banking Assets.

Pursuant to the NRB Unified Directive no. 4/2081, regulatory reserve on Accrued
Interest Receivable and Non-Banking Asset have been considered after taking effect
of staff bonus and income tax.
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5.14.3. Adjustment in opening Retained Earnings

Balance of opening retained earnings has been adjusted by NPR 6,477,603 on account
of tax paid on share premium of the company reviewed during 2075/76 levied vide
Finance Act, 2080.

5.15. Impairment of Loans and Advances

As per the carve out notice issued by ICAN, the Company has measured impairment loss
on loan and advances as the higher of amount derived as per norms prescribed by Nepal
Rastra Bank for loan loss provision and amount determined as per NFRS 9.

The expected credit loss is calculated as the product probability of default (PD), Exposure
at Default (EAD) and Loss Given Default (LGD).

The impairment loss on loans and advances as per NFRS 9 Expected Credit Loss model
is NPR 122.42 million and as per the norms prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank for loan loss
provision is NPR 180.22 million (NPR 130.82 million in previous year) in total.

5.16. Dividend Payable
Amount in NPR

Fiscal Year 32 Ashadh 2082 31 Ashadh 2081
FY2066/67 17,548 17,548
FY2067/68 49,411 49,411
FY2068/69 84,410 84,410
FY2069/70 1,496 1,496
FY 2070/71 89,955 89,955
Total 242,820 242,820

Amount in NPR

Particulars 32 Ashadh 2082 31 Ashadh 2081
Not collected for more than 5 years 242,820 242,820

Not collected up to 5 years

Total 242,820 242,820

5.17 Weighted Average Interest Spread

Particulars Rate %
Average Rate of return on Interest Earning Assets i.e, Loan and Advances 10.51%
(including staff loans), investments in Fixed Deposits and Shares =7
Average Cost of fund on Deposits, Borrowings, Debenture, Refinance and Inter 6.50%
Company borrowing N
Average Net Spread (Overall) 4.01%
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5.18 Summary of Concentration Exposure as on 32 Ashadh 2082

Particulars Loans, Advances & Deposits Contingent
Bills Purchased P Liabilities
Total amount as on 16/07/2025
(a5 per NRB) (NPR) 6,531,762,020 8,341,351,139 207,205,053
Highest exposure to a single 259,276,647 296,618,490 800,000
unit(group) (NPR)
Percentage of exposure to 3.97% 3.56% 0.39%

single unit/total

5.19 Earnings per Share

The Company measures earning per share on the basis of the earning attributable to the equity
shareholders for the period. The number of shares is taken as the weighted average number of shares for
the relevant period as required by NAS 33 Earnings per Share.

Amount in NPR

Year ended Year ended
32 Ashadh 2082 31 Ashadh 2081

Particulars Units

Profit attributable to equity shareholders (a)

NPR 69,653,168 61,659,323
Welghted average of number of equity shares used 10,000,000 9,816,832
in computing basic earnings per share (b)
Basic and diluted earnings per equity share of NPR 6.97 6.28

NPR100 each (a/b)
As there are no potential ordinary shares that would dilute current earning of equity holders, basic EPS
and diluted EPS are equal for the period presented.
5.20. Non-Banking Assets

The likely recovery of Non-Banking Assets amounting to NPR 701,250 is remote; therefore, the NBA has
been fully impaired since the First Time Adoption date of NFRS i.e., 15 July, 2017.

Party wise list of Non-Banking Assets as on 16 July 2025 is as under:

In NPR
Name of Borrowers Date of assuming As at As at
Non-Banking Assets 16 July 2025 15 July 2024
Kamal Khawas 13th July 2003 701,250 701,250
Shambhu Thapa 19th June 2008 - -
Hungry Hunter & Cottage 23rd May 2023 5,160,000 5,160,000
Krishna Prasad Bhurtel 23rd May 2023 4,888,600 4,888,600
Anita Gyawali 16th July 2023 1,821,000 1,821,000
Purushottam Bhattarai 5th September 2023 2,733,000 2,733,000
Total 15,303,850 15,303,850
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5.21 Details of Shareholders holding more than 0.5% of total paid up share capital

SN Name of Shareholders Sh::e. zil d Percent Amount
Promoter Shareholders
1 Sashi Raj Pandey 1,002,936 10.03 100,293,600
2 Dinesh Raj Joshi 806,282 8.06 80,628,200
3 Rabendra Raj Pandey 528,319 5.28 52,831,900
4 Chandra Lekha Pandey 474,617 475 47,461,700
5 Samson J.B Rana 412,728 413 41,272,800
6  Saurav Pant 312,900 3.13 31,290,000
7 Govind Ballabh Bhatt 176,017 1.76 17,601,700
8 Nirmal Nath Pandey 169,097 1.69 16,909,700
9  Meeta Shah Rana 160,146 1.60 16,014,600
10  Rajesh Kumar Agrawal 121,207 1.21 12,120,700
11 Samaksha Nath Pant 113,203 113 11,320,300
12 Sujan Pant 109,601 1.10 10,960,100
13 Bimal Senchury 106,337 1.06 10,633,700
14 Ambika Shah 98,769 0.99 9,876,900
15 Rana Bahadur Shah 98,612 0.99 9,861,200
16  Dharma Raj Shrestha 96,813 0.97 9,681,300
17  Excel Import And Export House 90,787 0.91 9,078,700
18 Jyoti Kumari Sarawagi 78,683 0.79 7,868,300
19  Bishnu Prasad Upadhaya 66,172 0.66 6,617,200
20 Adarsha Raj Pandey 54,356 0.54 5,435,600
21  Sanjay Man Baisyat 52,361 0.52 5,236,100
Public Shareholders

22 CIT- Citizen Unit Scheme 140,743 1.41 14,074,300
23 Trishakti Jung Bahadur Rana 113,797 1.14 11,379,700
24 Sabina Malla Shah 83,679 0.84 8,367,900
25  Prudential Capital Management Company Pvt. Ltd. 64,945 0.65 6,494,500
26  Life Insurance Corporation (Nepal) Limited 58,625 0.59 5,862,500
27  Ashok Kumar Agrawal 52,718 0.53 5,271,800

5.22. Proposed Distributions (Dividends and Bonus Shares)

The Board of directors in its meeting dated Mansir 9, 2082 (November 25, 2025) has passed a resolution
recommending for distribution of cash dividend at 6.40% of paid -up capital as at July 16, 2025.

Particulars 32 Ashadh 2082 31 Ashadh 2081
Cash Dividend 6.40% 0.098%
Bonus Shares - 1.86%
Total 6.40% 1.958%
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5.23. Principal Indicators

10.
11.

12.
13.
14.

15.

16.
17.

18.

19.

20.
21.
22.
23.
24,
25.
26.

Particulars

Percent of Net Profit/Gross Income
Earnings Per Share

Market Value per Share (as on
Ashadh end)

Price Earnings Ratio

Dividend (Bonus share and Cash)
on share capital

Cash Dividend on Share Capital
Interest Income/Loans & Advances

Staff Expenses (excluding staff
bonus)/Total Operating Expenses

Interest Expenses/Total Deposit
and Borrowings

Exchange Gain/Total Income

Staff (Statutory) Bonus/ Total Staff
Expenses (excluding bonus)

Net Profit/Loans & Advances
Total Credit/Deposit

Total Operating Expenses/Total
Assets

Adequacy of Capital Fund on
Risk Weightage Assets

a. Core Capital

b. Supplementary Capital
c. Total Capital Fund
Liquidity (CRR)

Net Non-Performing Credit/Total
Credit (as per NRB provision)

Base Rate (For the month of
Ashadh)

Weighted Average Interest Rate
Spread

Book Net worth

Total Shares

Total Employees

Book Value Per Share
ATM/CDM/CRM Terminals
POS Terminals

Branches

qo0 | ufaar arfifer wfdaad R0c2/0er

Indicators

Rs.

Rs.

Times

%

%
%

%

%

%

%

%
%

%

%
%
%
%

%

%

Rs.

No.
No.
Rs.

No.
No.
No.

2076/2077

15.30
1350

159.00
11.78
10.53

3.16
1548

62.59

8.97

2439

237
89.77

176

18.69
0.77
19.46
0.28

0.67

11.08

481

11,576
8,290,350
83

140

Restated as per NFRS reporting

2077/2078

17.15
12.86

489.00

38.03

330
14.40

62.72

7.19

2346

247
7391

23,62
123
2485
044

0.89

9.02

493

12,792
8,901,349
80

2078/2079

11.53
9.48

299.00
31.53
7.60

520
14.15

58.00

8.69

19.80

1.63
84.67

135

19.07

20.21
0.45

0.60

11.96

4.7

13,346
9,586,750
79

139

2079/2080

7.54
7.64

375
49.07
5.05

5.05
17.31

5843

19.58

20.75
037

1.05

1294

459

13,582
9,816,832
80

138

2080/2081

6.52
6.28

490
78.01
1.9641

0.0982
16.50

58.34

10.03

13.17

1.07
74.64

139

1838

19.53
0.41

2.86

1099

451

13435
9,816,832
83

137

2081/2082

oo

44
6.97

543.54
78.04
6.40

6.40
12.58

58.81

731

17.26
0.89
18.15
031

2.57

8.18

401

14,154
10,000,000
85

142
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Actuarial assumption

Actuarial valuation of defined benefit plan obligation is done on the basis of the following assumption.

32 Ashadh 2082

Discount Rate

Salary Escalation Rate
Expected Return on Assets
Mortality Rate

Withdrawal Rate 20-58
20-34

35-58

10%
7%

NALMT2009

5%
5%

5.25. Comparison of Unaudited and Audited Financial Statements

-]
£
TE5
Statement of Financial e g E
Position 32 %
g &
v
<
Assets
Cash and cash equivalent 632,095
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 424,587
Placement with Bank and i
Financial Institutions
Derivative financial i
instruments.
Other trading assets -
Loan and advances to B/Fls 257,945
Loans and advances to 6,159,539
customers
Investment securities 2,206,258
Current tax assets 29,173
Investment in subsidiaries -
Investment in associates -
Investment property 14,603
Property and equipment 151,701
Goodwill and Intangible 1015
assets
Deferred tax assets -
Other assets 47,765
Total Assets 9,925,581

qoR | ufeaErt arfifer afaaeT Rocg/0cr

Financial

As per Audited
Statement

632,095
424,587

257,945
6,155,431

2,198,827
30,575

14,603

132,622

1,915

33,625

9,882,225

Variance
1) In %

amount

(4,108) (0.07%)

(7,431) (0.34%

1,402 4.81%

(19,079)  (12.58%)

(14,140) (29.60%)
(43,356)

31 Ashadh 2081
10%
7%

NALMT2009

5%
5%

Amount in 000’

Reasons for
Variance

Tax impact

NFRS 16 adjustment
on ROU

NFRS 9  deferred
employee expenditure
adjustment
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Liabilities

:?]‘;E ttstian';k and Financial 367,33 367,362 26 001%

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 170,000 170,000 - -

Derivative financial ) i i

instruments

Deposits from customers 7,834,808 7,834,781 (26) -

Borrowing - - -

Current Tax Liabilities - - -

Provisions - - -

Deferred tax liabilities 34,921 15,916 (19,006)  (54.42%) Audit Adjustment
Other liabilities 96205 78724  (17481)  (18.17%) Z'EF;‘;J 6 adjustment
Debt securities issued - - - -

Subordinated Liabilities - - - -

Total Liabilities 8,503,270 8,466,783 (36,514) -

Equity

Share capital 1,000,000 1,000,000 - -

Share premium - - - -

Retained earnings 62,800 65,639 2,839 4.52% Adjust adjustment
Reserves 359,511 349,803 (9,708) (2.70%)
Z:ﬁ't;c}‘]‘é'g;f”b”tab'e 0 1422311 1415442 (6,869)

Total liabilities and equity 9,925,581 9,882,225  (43,383)

Interest income 828,281 829,354 1,073 0.13%
Interest expense 595,098 599,237 4,138 0.70%
Net interest income 233,183 230,117 (3,065)  (1.31%)
Fee and commission income 31,555 34,352 2,797 8.86% Reclassification
Zi;:::lecommlssmn 151 75 (76)  (50.05%) Reclassification

Rl e HideiaT Roe?/o0ck | 103
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T — Variance N
= ] 3 e (=] (]
S85 TES n ¥
s O 5T c £

Statement of ProfitorLoss £ § 5 < s 5 In o2
Sew T ER In % v s
gL mz oify amount o >
2 2 =

Net fee and commission 31,404 34,277 2,872 9.15%

income
Other operating income 15,324 11,293 (4,031)  (26.30%) Reclassification
Total operating income 279,911 275,687 (4,224) (1.51%)
Impairment
charge/(reversal) for loans 49,405 49,405 - -
and other losses
Net operating income 230,505 226,282 (4,224) (1.83%)
Personnel expenses 74446 76471 2,026 27205 Actuarial & Staff Loan
prepaid adjustments
Depreciation 7675 16125 8449  110099% FR> 16 adjustment
on ROU
Other operating expenses 48,484 37,434 (11,050)  (22.70%) NFRS 16 adjustment
on ROU
Operating profit 99,901 96,252 (3,649) (3.65%)
Non-operating i i i )
income/expense
Profit before tax 99,901 96,252 (3,649)  (3.65%)
Income tax 29,970 26,599 (3,371) (11.25% Audit adjustment
Profit /(loss) for the period 69,931 69,653 (277)  (0.40%)
Sanshar Sharma Lilamani Neupane Ram Krishna Sharma Wagle
Head-Accounts/Finance Dept Chief Executive Officer Director
Samson J. B. Rana Umesh Bhagat Pradhananga Bhola Prasad Pathak
Director Director Director
Dinesh Raj Joshi Kalyan Adhikari FCA Sashi Satyal
Chair Person Director Partner
PKF TR Upadhya & Co.

Chartered Accountants
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Together we deliver

Biratnagar Branch Tel- 021-5117911 Bhairahawa Branch Tai: 071-576507 = Taulihawa Branch Tel 076-5571587 | Rajahar Branch Tal
Danda Branch Tel: (78-418002 | Odari Branch Tal: 075-4 Harkapur Branch Tal: 078-403103 | Salyan Branch Tal. 088-4
Rukum Branch Tel: 038-420038 | Budhanilkantha Branch Tl 014379138 | imado! Branch Tel: (41-5201147 | Chabahil Branch Tel: 0
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